
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
 

TOWN OF APEX  1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 2 

TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2026  3 
3:30 P.M.  4 

  5 
The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, March 17, 2026 at 3:30 p.m. at the 6 
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina.        7 
    8 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this meeting 9 
in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel:      10 
   11 
 [ATTENDANCE]        12 
Elected Body          13 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)     14 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Terry Mahaffey   15 
Councilmember Ed Gray (arrived late) 16 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman   17 
Councilmember Shane Reese     18 
Councilmember Sue Mu          19 
     20 
Town Staff          21 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis          22 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John          23 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone         24 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe          25 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman   26 
Economic Development Director Joanna Helms  27 
Economic Development Manager Colleen Merays  28 
Long-Range Planning Manager Shannon Cox  29 
Transportation & Infrastructure Development Director Chris Johnson  30 
        31 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.         32 
        33 
[CALL TO ORDER l PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE]         34 
         35 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m., welcomed everyone, and led 36 
everyone in the pledge of allegiance.       37 
    38 
[ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACADEMY]  39 
 40 
 Town Manager Vosburg thanked the Council Members for joining and turned it over 41 
to staff to introduce the speakers.  42 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 2 of 33 
 

 Joanna Helms, Director of Economic Development, introduced her team members 1 
Colleen Merays, Economic Development Manager, Bailey Robertson, Marketing Coordinator 2 
and Michelle Boyles, Program Support Specialist. She also introduced Charles Hayes, Sr. 3 
Fellow and Daniel Park, Sr. Instructor with Hayes Group Consulting.  4 
 5 
 Mr. Hayes and Mr. Parks gave the following presentation with Mr. Hayes giving this 6 
part of the presentation: 7 
[SLIDE 1] 8 

  9 
[SLIDE 2] 10 

  11 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 3 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 4] 3 

  4 
[SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 4 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 5 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 10] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 11] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 6 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 12] 1 

 2 
 Mr. Hayes gave this part of the presentation: 3 
[SLIDE 13] 4 

 5 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 7 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 14] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 15] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 16] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 8 of 33 
 

 Mr. Hayes asked what residents may say about Economic Development issues or 1 
topics and asked Council and staff to write these down. 2 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that one of the issues is how small-town character is 3 
being protected. 4 
 Councilmember Reese said how to learn best practices from other municipalities to 5 
keep Apex’s character and community vibrant and how to recruit or keep businesses that will 6 
pair well with the potential Children’s Hospital. 7 
 Mr. Parks asked while the Council or staff are out in the community what are some 8 
things they are hearing, no data center, can’t believe how much Apex is growing, etc.  9 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said land cost was one concern.  10 
 Councilmember Mu said that one concern was the housing costs and can’t afford to 11 
live here, for example Fire Fighters that can’t afford to live here. 12 
 Mr. Hayes said some may have grown up in Apex and can’t afford to live in Apex.  13 
 Mayor Gilbert said that he hears the opposite compared to places like Holly Springs. 14 
He said that he hears about small businesses closing for different reasons and gave an 15 
example of Yamato Japanese. 16 
 Councilmember Mu asked what the reason for the Japanese restaurant to close. 17 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that he hears tax dollars and not so much about 18 
community and the benefit to the community but about tax income. 19 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey said that he hears concerns about land and 20 
development.  21 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey said water and sewer utility issues. 22 
 Ms. Merays said the difficulty in finding employees for retail restaurants because of 23 
the cost of living in Apex, Public Transportation impacting the business community, access to 24 
capital and Tourism.  25 
 Mr. Hayes said that his summary was is growth sustainable and can be sustained, and 26 
what those best practices are and how to keep the character of Apex with the current growth 27 
changes are fast and is outgrowing the infrastructure. He said that cost of living is too high for 28 
employees to live in Apex and Public Transportation is not available.  29 
 Mr. Parks said that two things that weren’t mentioned were education and health care, 30 
which are big issues in other areas, and most people in Apex are secure in these two issues. 31 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that there wasn’t any mention about jobs, and Apex has 32 
a lot of employment.  33 
 Mr. Parks said in activity number one was what residents have said about Economic 34 
Development in Apex and asked the Council and staff what they would say about Economic 35 
Development in Apex that shows up in the media or Economic Development news and 36 
successes.  37 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that the Children’s Hospital brings potential for 38 
Economic Development growth.  39 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey said that Veridia will bring in a lot of Economic growth 40 
to the area.   41 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 9 of 33 
 

 Councilmember Gray said that Apex has cultivated an atmosphere and reputation as 1 
a desirable place to live, work, and visit.  2 
 Mr. Parks stated that, in working with Roanoke Rapids, the community has faced 3 
challenges related to deterioration and is now striving to rebrand itself as a city of resilience.  4 
 Mayor Gilbert referenced the S-Line project as an earlier example of an initiative 5 
supporting economic growth.   6 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone stated that, had the Town not invested in 7 
infrastructure to extend sewer service to the Big Branch Basin, projects such as Veridea and 8 
the Children’s Hospital would not have been possible.  9 
 Town Attorney Hohe said that these efforts date back even further to the West Point 10 
Treatment Plant and the Town’s partnership with Cary. 11 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said that these strategic partnerships and 12 
investments in water and sewer infrastructure have been critical to Apex’s economic 13 
development and represent some of the most impactful decisions made by Town leadership.14 
 Councilmember Zegerman aid that investments in downtown Apex and economic 15 
growth are positive but should also preserve Apex’s heritage. 16 
 Councilmember Reese said that the Small Business Incubator Program spins out 17 
small businesses, but it is equally important that participants enjoy being part of the program 18 
and, over time, become Ambassadors for the program and the Town. 19 
 Mr. Parks said the key word is “Ambassadors.” He asked what the defining factors are, 20 
including the Peak of Good Living, and how positive developments and good decisions 21 
contribute to a defining characteristic of the Town. 22 
 Mr. Hayes said that what he took from the discussion is that Council and staff are 23 
forward-looking, considering impacts beyond the present, such as the Children’s Hospital 24 
project. Growth is positive but should be managed carefully, including projects like the S-line. 25 
In the past, Apex has focused on planning for the future, including infrastructure decisions. He 26 
added that one way to grow is through entrepreneurship and small business development, 27 
which Apex has recognized, and that the Town is doing well. 28 
 Mr. Parks said there is a lot to celebrate in being Ambassadors. He noted that a PDF 29 
would be distributed for review. He said the Council would take a break and return at 4:37 30 
p.m. 31 
 Mr. Hayes said that when considering investments or relocation, it is important to 32 
assume that outsiders know nothing about Apex and consider what they would learn online 33 
about the Town. 34 
  35 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 10 of 33 
 

 [SLIDE 17] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 18] 3 

 4 
 5 

  6 
[ECONOMIC DEVLOPMENT ACADEMY CONTINUED]  7 
 8 
 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting back in session at 4:40p.m. 9 
 10 
 Mr. Hayes continued with the presentation. 11 

 12 
 13 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 11 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 19] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 20] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 21] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 12 of 33 
 

 Mr. Hayes provided an overview of population growth trends in the area, highlighting 1 
recent increases and projected future growth.  2 
[SLIDE 22] 3 

  4 
Mr. Parks continued the presentation. 5 

[SLIDE 23] 6 

  7 
 Mr. Hayes asked everyone if they were familiar with the meaning of a “Right to Work” 8 
state. He explained that in such a state, individuals have the choice of whether or not to join a 9 
labor union and emphasized that he wanted to ensure everyone understood the concept and 10 
its implications.  11 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 13 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 24] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 25] 3 

  4 
 Mr. Parks asked Ms. Helms what the “Think Apex” initiative meant to her, how it 5 
originated, and how it has manifested today. 6 
 Director Helms explained that around 2014, a Council member wanted residents to 7 
prioritize “Apex first.” She noted that the initiative initially focused on businesses but later 8 
evolved to include community recognition. Today, there are two main components: 9 
identifying community heroes and “Think Apex Day,” which is a day of service. Examples of 10 
activities include painting pictures in the park or creating artwork for residents of a local 11 
nursing home. 12 
 Mr. Parks said that people have really responded to this. 13 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 14 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 26] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 27] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 28] 5 

  6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 15 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 29] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 30] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 31] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 16 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 32] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 33] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 34] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 17 of 33 
 

Mr. Parks asked for everyone to watch the video “Did you know” noting that the audio 1 
was not essential. He requested that participants take notes on potential implications for 2 
Apex.  3 

Mr. Parks said that the world is shifting beneath our feet and asked what observations 4 
from the video stood out regarding future implications for the town.  5 

Councilmember Gray said that change occurs more rapidly every day. 6 
Councilmember Zegerman said hat technology is altering how the Town works with 7 

residents and collaborates internally, as well as impacting Economic Development, citing 8 
examples such as data centers. 9 

Councilmember Mu said the influence of AI on jobs and the workforce.   10 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey said hybrid work has created shifts in how people 11 

work and interact, noting its impact on workplace trends.  12 
Mr. Hayes asked in the context of these trends, whether staff has developed long-13 

range plan to address future needs.  14 
Ms. Cox said that staff is currently working with Government Readiness efforts that 15 

focus on evaluating major trends.  16 
Mr. Hayes said that this work involves looking ahead and adapting to the rapid pace 17 

of change, and considering what those changes will mean for Apex. 18 
Mr. Parks organized attendees into groups and asked them to review the handout 19 

provided by Clerk Coleman. He instructed participants to begin where they preferred, 20 
evaluate the potential impacts on Apex, and discuss their thoughts. He allotted approximately 21 
10 minutes for discussion and then requested a volunteer from each group to share key 22 
takeaways. 23 

Councilmember Gray said that one of the key discussion points was the trend of 24 
government instability, including a decreased reliance on federal and state partners for 25 
grants and funding. He noted the importance of maintaining strong regional and local 26 
partnerships to help fill funding gaps, as well as identifying alternative or combined funding 27 
sources. He added that this discussion also extended to environmental trends, including 28 
regulatory rollbacks, and emphasized Apex’s desire to remain a good steward of the 29 
environment. 30 

Mr. Hayes said that this was a strong example of a current trend and noted that there 31 
has been an approximate $3 million loss in research funding, which has impacted the 32 
Research Triangle region. 33 

Councilmember Zegerman stated that his group discussed evolving forms of 34 
mobility, including increased emphasis on walkability and how roadway design must adapt to 35 
these changes. 36 

Mr. Hayes noted that walkability continues to be a growing trend, with increased 37 
demand for pedestrian-friendly environments, and observed that downtown Apex is already 38 
responding to this shift. 39 

Councilmember Reese stated that his group discussed environmental sustainability, 40 
highlighting benefits such as infrastructure preservation, recreation opportunities, and 41 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 18 of 33 
 

cultural alignment. He noted that the community appears supportive of the Town’s 1 
investments in environmental and sustainability initiatives. 2 

Clerk Coleman stated that his group discussed demographic trends, including an 3 
aging population and younger families who wish to live in Apex near relatives but face 4 
challenges finding affordable housing. He noted the need to address services for both 5 
seniors and younger residents, particularly those between the ages of 20 and 50. He added 6 
that the group also discussed the potential impact of artificial intelligence on the workforce, 7 
including increased efficiencies as well as the possibility of job displacement. 8 

? said they discussed the social part of Economic Development and how the 9 
workforce growth and people needing to make more to put in the economy and they saw 10 
these implications as being positive for the workforce growth and with the trend of inflation 11 
increasing the lack of disposable income to put back into the economy.   12 

Mr. Hayes asked if they thought this was a trend. 13 
? said that it may be a trend in general but not specifically to one thing. 14 
Ms. Cox said they discussed the data center and the issues that come with that and 15 

data security.  16 
Mr. Hayes said that data security is something that is not talked about enough.  17 

 18 
[SLIDE 35] 19 

 20 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 19 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 36] 1 

 2 
 3 

Mr. Parks collected the document that had been handed out from all and spoke 4 
about dinner.  5 

Clerk Coleman said that there would be a group photo and then recess for dinner.  6 
 7 
[SLIDE 37] 8 

  9 
 10 

Recess began at 5:35 p.m.  11 
 12 

[ECONOMIC DEVLOPMENT ACADEMY CONTINUED]  13 
 14 

The meeting resumed at 5:55 p.m. 15 
 16 
Mr. Parks gave an overview of “Making It Work” and what would be talked about in 17 

this part of the session and continued with the presentation. 18 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 20 of 33 
 

 1 
[SLIDE 38] 2 

  3 
[SLIDE 39] 4 

 5 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 21 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 40] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 41] 3 

 4 
 Mr. Hayes continued with Academia, Industry, and Government portion of the 5 
presentation.  6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 22 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 42] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 43] 3 

  4 
[SLIDE 44] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 23 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 45] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 46] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked how Apex could better utilize educational 5 
opportunities to support current and future businesses. 6 
 Mr. Hayes stated that a common area of focus would be workforce development. He 7 
explained that engaging local business leaders, such as Dell, and partnering with universities 8 
and community colleges could help identify workforce needs and develop collaborative 9 
strategies. He emphasized the importance of proactive engagement and strategic planning.10 
 Councilmember Reese noted that historically, collaboration between government, 11 
industry, and academia at the state level led to the development of Research Triangle Park, as 12 
well as the establishment of the North Carolina Biotechnology Center. 13 
 Mr. Hayes said that over 40 years ago North Carolina had little presence in the life 14 
sciences industry, and today ranks among the top three states nationally. 15 
 Ms. Helms provided two local examples, including Launch Apex, which involves 16 
partnerships between businesses, Wake Tech, and the Town of Apex, as well as an outreach 17 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 24 of 33 
 

program that connects local industry with NC State through industrial extension partnerships 1 
implemented at the community level. 2 
 Mayor Gilbert asked where the shift in the educational gap has occurred.  3 
 Mr. Hayes stated that he was uncertain of a specific point of change but noted that 4 
industrial training schools were prevalent in the 1950s, followed by the establishment of 5 
community colleges in the 1960s. He added that there are currently 58 community colleges 6 
across the state. Mr. Hayes further noted that there is a growing perception nationally that 7 
higher education is not necessary, which he cautioned against, while also acknowledging that 8 
a four-year degree is not required for all career paths. 9 
 Councilmember Reese said that community college systems play a critical role in 10 
workforce development. 11 
 Mr. Parks discussed the role of branding and noted that there are 17 public university 12 
campuses in North Carolina, many of which incorporate economic development into their 13 
strategic planning efforts. He stated that this reflects a positive trend of universities engaging 14 
with and supporting the broader economy. Mr. Parks provided examples of programs and 15 
services offered through these partnerships and then proceeded with the traded clusters 16 
portion of the presentation. 17 
 Mr. Hayes explained that there are two types of clusters: non-traded clusters, which 18 
provide local services such as barbershops, and traded clusters, which produce goods or 19 
services locally for a broader market, such as Dell in Apex. He noted the importance of 20 
maintaining a balanced mix, with a focus on traded clusters. 21 
 Mr. Parks asked staff what percentage of Apex’s workforce is in manufacturing.  22 
 Ms. Helms said maybe about 24% of the workforce is manufacturing. 23 
 Mr. Hayes stated that the statewide average for manufacturing employment in North 24 
Carolina is approximately 12%, and estimated that Apex’s percentage is likely closer to 9–25 
10%. 26 
 Ms. Cox said that manufacturing industry for Apex is 6.5%.  27 
 Mr. Parks stated that an important consideration is whether these clusters are well-28 
positioned for future growth in Apex as part of the Town’s strategic planning efforts. 29 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 25 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 47] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 48] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 49] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 26 of 33 
 

 Mr. Parker asked staff how regional partnerships are functioning for Apex. 1 
 Director Helms said that Apex works effectively with its regional partners, including 2 
Wake County Economic Development.  3 
[SLIDE 50] 4 

 5 
[SLIDE 51] 6 

 7 
 Mr. Parker asked if there were anything additional not listed that is being marketed 8 
for Apex.  9 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 27 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 52] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 53] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 54] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 28 of 33 
 

 [SLIDE 55] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 56] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 57] 5 

 6 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 29 of 33 
 

 Mr. Parker asked everyone to return to their groups and review the handout, 1 
considering it in the context of Apex’s economic development. He directed them to engage 2 
in a critical thinking exercise to identify what is working, what is not working, and what is 3 
needed, with an emphasis on identifying needs. 4 
[SLIDE 58]  5 

 6 
 Mr. Parker asked for a volunteer to give an example or summary of their group’s 7 
discussion. 8 
 Clerk Coleman said that the group discussed similarities between identified gaps and 9 
needs, noting that both required further clarification. He stated that strengths included 10 
proactive efforts, relationship-building, and the downtown principal business district, with 11 
consideration given to expanding beyond downtown and increasing parking. He noted that 12 
challenges included limited funding for land- and workforce-related projects, as well as the 13 
impact of remote work on industry and downtown businesses. He stated that identified needs 14 
included prioritization of existing, available, or redevelopment parcels, favorable rezoning 15 
regulations for businesses, enhanced recruitment and retention efforts, and a greater 16 
understanding of the “live, work anywhere” concept. 17 
 Mr. Parker said that RTI did an article identifying the professions that would likely be 18 
“live anywhere, work anywhere” like civil engineers and this may be something to factor in.19 
 Ms. Cox said that strengths include Apex’s location, the ability of the downtown to 20 
attract visitors, and existing infrastructure. She noted that gaps include the availability of 21 
higher-level professional jobs, housing affordability relative to local incomes, and the need 22 
for external attractions to draw visitors, as well as patience for non-residential projects to 23 
come to fruition. 24 
 Mr. Parks asked what was meant by external attractions.  25 
 Ms. Cox said that this could include venues such as theaters or similar destinations 26 
that would attract people to Apex. 27 
 Ms. Merays stated that strengths include existing staffing across Apex, a diverse 28 
employment base including industry and small businesses, effective marketing and 29 
communications, established relationships with developers and project partners, quality of 30 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 30 of 33 
 

life, schools and education, and the Town’s budgeting and prioritization of economic 1 
development. She noted that gaps include low vacancy rates, particularly for small 2 
businesses, limited available commercial space, and insufficient funding for business support. 3 
She added that identified needs include additional space and land sites, future infrastructure 4 
planning to ensure site readiness, consideration of incubator space for micro-manufacturers, 5 
and opportunities to build on stewardship and sustainability efforts. 6 
 Director Helms said that additional strengths include leadership from both elected 7 
officials and staff, a business-friendly environment, and a strong external reputation, despite 8 
some internal challenges. She noted that areas for improvement include negative resident 9 
activism and funding gaps for small businesses. She stated that needs include large tracts of 10 
land suitable for major life sciences projects, increased use of business testimonials as part of 11 
marketing efforts, and greater vertical integration of companies, as well as strategies to attract 12 
additional large industries to Apex. 13 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that while large projects generate excitement, 14 
negative commentary during public sessions can detract from those efforts.15 
 Councilmember Mu said that misinformation shared during public forums can create 16 
challenges and negatively impact perceptions of Apex. 17 
 Councilmember Gray said that his group focused on the strength of diversity within 18 
Apex’s business community and noted the Town’s resilience during economic downturns 19 
compared to other municipalities. He emphasized the importance of communicating this 20 
resilience and helping residents understand and adapt to change. 21 
 Councilmember Reese said that his group discussed proactive decision-making in 22 
economic development and the importance of capturing opportunities. He noted challenges 23 
related to employment retention, including individuals who work in Apex but cannot afford to 24 
live there, and those who live in Apex but work elsewhere. He stated that a goal is to better 25 
align where people live and work to strengthen community connections and reduce traffic 26 
impacts. He added that key needs include additional funding, time, a stable state budget, 27 
expansion of Launch Apex, and exploration of future program phases.   28 
  29 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 31 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 59] 1 

 2 
 Mr. Hayes asked that the documents be collected and noted that they contained 3 
valuable insights for future consideration. 4 
 Mr. Parker said that the plan was well presented and emphasized the importance of 5 
not only having a plan, but also building champions to support the vision and goals for Apex. 6 
He provided an example from Wayne County to illustrate how results can be effectively 7 
demonstrated.  8 
[SLIDE 60] 9 

 10 
   11 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 32 of 33 
 

[SLIDE 61] 1 

 2 
 Mr. Parker asked Mr. Hayes if he wanted to discuss ECU and the evaluation process, 3 
including finalizing it. 4 
 Director Helms said that staff could handle the evaluations. Although it wasn’t 5 
mentioned in her email, staff can distribute them.  6 
[SLIDE 62] 7 

 8 
   Mr. Hayes thanked everyone for allowing them to attend and stated that the 9 
challenges Apex faces are ones many communities would welcome. He noted that 10 
historically, Apex has positioned itself well and is a good place, crediting those present in the 11 
room for that success. 12 
 Director Helms thanked the group and confirmed that the certificates and evaluation 13 
forms would be returned to Mr. Hayes. 14 
     15 
 [ADJOURNEMENT]         16 
         17 

Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 7:16 p.m.   18 



DRAFT l March 17, 2026 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Page 33 of 33 
 

       1 
        2 

Jacques K. Gilbert        3 
Apex, Mayor        4 

       5 
 Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC          6 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council          7 
         8 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman      9 
     10 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2026.         11 
 12 


